
  Public Notice of Meeting 
WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, January 8, 2019 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

           6:30 p.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER-Harry Dailey-Chair

II. ELEMENTARY STUDENTS OF THE MONTH

III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda. This is also the
public’s opportunity to speak to any topic concerning the school district.  No complaints regarding specific staff
members will be heard during a public meeting.  The District has established separate procedures for complaints 
against individual employees.  

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE
a. Reports

i. Superintendent’s Report
ii. Business Administrator’s Report

iii. Principals’ Report
iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report

VI. CONSENT AGENDA

VII. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION
a. FY 2019-2020

i. Budget Review Session
ii. Warrants

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS

IX. ACTION ITEMS
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting
b. Elect Negotiations Committee
c. MS Reorganization

X. POLICIES
i. BIA-New Board Member Orientation-2nd Read

ii. BDB-Board Officers-2nd Read

XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS
i. Budget Liaison

XII. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES

XIII. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS

XV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

XVI. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A:3 II (A) (C)
i. Personnel Matter

ii. Student Matter



 
 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT  

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐January 22, 6:30 PM at WLC‐Media Room 

The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
January 8, 2019 

 
 
The holiday break has come and gone with no additional snow days called since Thanksgiving.  The 
custodial staff has been working throughout the break to refresh the finish on the floors and catching 
up on the day to day maintenance that happens throughout the school year.  Thanks for all their work. 
 
I have spent some days helping out at the middle school in working with sixth grade students in their 
math classes.  It is a rewarding feeling to be in the classroom with these students and it gives me a 
great sense for the day to day operations of the school building.  Communication has been sent to 
parents in regard to the math instruction in the classroom and I have invited their concerns to be 
forwarded to me at any time. 
 
A new piece of legislation that is currently in effect is Senate Bill 453 that discusses the definition of 
“an adequate education.”  The bill proposes that the State Board of Education adopt rules for 
approving alternative programs for granting credits leading to graduation. The State 
Board of Education in their rule making has included a statement under consideration in 
ED1406.02 
 

1. Certificates shall be used to grant credit for graduation. 
2. The student shall submit the completion certificate to the high school where they wish to 

be granted credit, or they shall not receive credit. 
3. Approved New Hampshire schools shall grant students with valid completion certificates 

high school credit leading to graduation in the area enumerated. 
 
With an approved plan through the school counseling office, we already accept certificates and 
transcripts for high school credit.  The plan is approved after we know who is going to be working 
with students, what the curriculum or activities are and there is a standard set by us in coordination 
with the entity working with the student. The concern here is in item number three the State Board of 
Education grants itself the authority to approve a program without consulting with the local school 
district.  A parent, a for profit business, a non-profit business or any entity can apply to the state school 
board to be an approved program.  Hypothetically, a student can earn credit for Algebra 1 by going to 
an approved program.  There is no oversight as to who is delivering instruction, no confirmation that 
the student has met the competencies set out by the school district and a lack of oversight of the 
programs that are approved.  If the rule in number three was changed from “shall” to “may” that would 
give local school districts the ability to ensure that entities from outside the district are meeting local 
standards.  There will be a public hearing on this matter on February 14 with the State Board of 
Education. 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road 
Lyndeborough, NH  03082 

603-654-8088 

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 
  
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

I am meeting with the WLCTA on Wednesday, January 2nd to discuss a filed grievance in regard to the 
school board’s decision to extend the school calendar to 178 days.  My responsibility will be to 
respond to the presented grievance within five days. 
 
The holiday concert at FRES was a good one that was well attended.  The students in grades 1-3 did a 
wonderful job and the families received the performance with enthusiasm. Congratulations to our 
music teacher, Claudette Barker, on a job well done.   
 
The South Central Superintendents will be meeting on January 18 for our monthly meeting. 
 
The statewide Superintendents meeting will be held on January 25 for that monthly meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BUSINESS OFFICE REPORT 

January 8, 2019 

 
 
Lise will be working on the MD&A (Management Discussion and Analysis) report for insertion into the 
audit report.  We anticipate getting the final audit report by the end of the month.   
 
Mary Anne will be working on the year end reconciliations in preparation for state and federal form 
compliance.  Form 1099s for contracted services and Form W-2s for employees. 
 
Lise and Mary Anne will be working on getting the Form 1095s completed in conjunction with School 
Care for the Affordable Care Act reporting. 
 
Mary Anne will also be working on the Quarterly Payroll Tax Returns and the monthly New Hampshire 
Retirement contributions.  This includes the reconciliations in preparation for this reporting. 
 
Lise will be working with Kristina on completing the financial sections of the annual report.  This report is 
prepared for the district meeting in March.  It includes the current year financial information as well as 
budget information for the next fiscal year of 2019-20. 
 
Mary Anne continues to push forward with the processing of payroll, accounts payable and accounts 
receivable. 
 
Lise continues to push forward with the processing of purchase orders, grant reporting and ad hoc 
requests. 
 
Buddy and his staff have made various repairs as needed to the schools.  Their emphasis during the 
holiday break was to clean common areas wherever possible.  Examples include:  Replacing ceiling tiles 
at WLC and cleaning area rugs/carpets at FRES. 
 
The Food Service Licenses have been renewed with the State for the calendar year 2019. 
 
 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 

School Administrative Unit #63 

       192 Forest Road, 

  Lyndeborough, NH 03082   

                        

 Bryan K. Lane     Betty Moore, M.Ed.    Lise Tucker 

 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services  Business Administrator 

  

  



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL

57 SCHOOL ROAD 
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 

(603) 654-6123 
www.sau63.org/domain10 

WLC Principal Report 
1/8/19 

The Dance Team will be competing in two competitions, one in February at Emmanuel College and the other, which 
will be the regional competition, will be held at Westfield College. The team is learning new routines in preparation for 
the competitions.  

The Drama Team cast has been selected and are reviewing a full read which they started before vacation and finished up 
last week. Props and back stage crew are gathering ideas for sets and costumes. 

On December 6th Niel Albero from “Universal Design for Learning” (UDL) along with Principal Tim O’Connell, 
Julie Heon, Sarah Edmunds and I visited teachers from FRES and WLC. At the end of the day everyone met for a debrief. 
It was an excellent time for teachers to collaborate and review instructional strategies..  

December 10th Early Release Day was devoted to two very important issues, social/emotional issues that our 
students are struggling with and how to analyze data and then what to do with that information. Amy Jo Muscott 
Education Coordinator from Bridges met with the faculty and provided information concerning depression and suicide. 
Bridges is a non- profit organization that offers support for issues such as Domestic and Sexual Violence, and Suicide. 
Discussion centered around myths and facts about suicide and the school’s role in preventing a tragedy from occurring. 
Ms. Muscott also shared with the faculty “signs of suicide” (SOS) that teachers and staff might see when students are 
having emotional struggles and might be at risk. Julie Heon reviewed a presentation that explained how analyzing 
assessments for data can inform our curriculum and instruction. She explained assessment analysis needs to be ongoing 
and the analysis needs to occur with data from many different grade levels (earlier grades, grades preceding, last year to 
see trends, current year. The departments then broke out and reviewed data that was pertinent to them. The two 
presentations were well received.  

WLC qualified in the top 20 schools in New Hampshire and was invited to compete in the Coding Competition 
finals. Four of our students represented WLC middle school at the CRCC coding competition finals at UNH. They 
competed very well and made for a proud representation of our school! The team members were Brooklyn Furze, Noah 
Jaffe, Kendall Riendeau, Christian Balusek, and Jared Clark. Brooklyn and Christian were two of 80 students in the entire 
state presented with certificates for completing the entire boot camp of the qualifying round, congratulations to them and 
congratulations to our participants on a job well done!  

The annual WLC National Geographic Geography Bee is scheduled to be held on Thursday, January 17th (with a 
snow date of Friday, January 18th) at 8:15 in the WLC Cafeteria; all are invited to attend. Middle schoolers have been 
practicing "bee style" questions frequently throughout the school year. Interested students will have the opportunity to 
participate in additional practices, and a Preliminary Bee within the first two weeks of January. From the Preliminary Bee, 
10 finalists will advance to the School Bee on the 17th. Good luck to all! 

Respectfully, 

Brian Bagley 

 



AD Report 

Head Coach: Flip Tremblay 

Assistant Coach: Sherry LeBlanc 

# of players: 11 

Record: 1-4 

Next Home Game: 1/4/19 vs PCA at 7pm 

Boys JV Basketball 

Head Coach: Ross Gookin 

# of players: 10 

Record: 0-1 

Next Home Game: 1/4/19 vs PCA at 5:30pm 

Girls Varsity Basketball 

Head Coach: Kyle Pratt 

Assistant Coach: Alison Jenkerson 

# of players: 8 

Record: 2-5 

Next Home Game: 1/2/19 vs Hinsdale at 6pm 

Middle School Boys Basketball 

Head Coach: Aaron Robbins 

# of players: 12 

Next Home Game: 1/8/19 vs Chester at 4:30pm 

Record: 0-6 

Middle School Girls Basketball 

Head Coach: Wade Cutler 

Assistant Coach: Sami Bosquet 

# of players: 12 

Next Home Game: 1/8/19 vs Chester at 3:15pm 

Record: 1-5 

Swim Team 

# of participants: 5 

Alpine Ski Team 

# of participants: 2 

 

Indoor Track Team 

# of participants: 1 



Tuesday, January 1 – NO SCHOOL 

Wednesday, January 2 – GV/BV @ Hinsdale, 6:00/7:00 

Thursday, January 3 – MS @ Presentation of Mary, 3:30/5:00 

Friday, January 4 – WLC Pride Day 

Student of the Month 

BJV/BV vs. PCA, 5:30/7:00 

Saturday, January 5 –  

Sunday, January 6 – Men’s League Basketball, 8am-3pm, Gym 

Monday, January 7 – MS @ Hopkinton, 3:30/5:00 

Tuesday, January 8 – BJV/BV vs. Derryfield, 5:30/7:00 

GV @ Derryfield, 5:00 

School Board meeting, 6:30, Library 

Budget Committee meeting, 6:30, Main Hall conference room 

Wednesday, January 9 – Math Team @ Conval, 3:00 

Thursday, January 10 – GV/BV @ Mt. Royal, 5:30/7:00 

MS vs. Presentation of Mary, 3:30/5:00 

Friday, January 11 – Grades 8 & 9 field trip to MHS 

Saturday, January 12 – 

Sunday, January 13 – Men’s League Basketball, 8am-3pm, Gym 

Monday, January 14 – GV/BV vs. Hinsdale, 6:00/7:00 

MS @ Auburn, 3:30/5:00 

Coop Connection Meeting, 6:00, Library 

Tuesday, January 15 – Policy Committee meeting, 6:00, Office conference room 

Budget Committee meeting, 6:30, Library 

Wednesday, January 16 – 

Thursday, January 17 – MS vs. Epping, 3:30/5:00 

Friday, January 18 – Semester 1 Ends 

GV/BV vs. Linwood, 5:00/6:30 



Saturday, January 19 –  

Sunday, January 20 – Men’s League Basketball, 8am-3pm, Gym 

Monday, January 21 – NO SCHOOL 

Tuesday, January 22 – Semester 2 Begins 

GV @ Sunapee, 6:00 

BV vs. Concord Christian, 7:00 

School Board meeting, 6:30, Library 

Wednesday, January 23 –  

Thursday, January 24 – BJV/BV @ PCA, 5:00/6:30  

8th Grade step up night, 6:00, Library 

Friday, January 25 – Middle School Winter Dance, 3:00-5:00, Cafe 

Saturday, January 26 – 

Sunday, January 27 – Men’s League Basketball, 8am-3pm, Gym 

Monday, January 28 – GV @ Mascenic, 5:30 

Tuesday, January 29 – 

Wednesday, January 30 – GV/BV vs. Mt. Royal, 5:30/7:00 

Thursday, January 31 – 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Florence Rideout Elementary School 
18 Tremont Street  
Wilton, NH 03086 

Phone: 603-654-6714 
Fax: 603-654-3490 

 
 

     Website: 
www.sau63.org 

Lyndeborough Central School 
192 Forest Road 

Lyndeborough, NH 03082 
Phone: 603-654-9381 

Fax: 603-654-6884 
 

 

 
 

Principal’s Report:   1/8/2019 
 

Lyndeborough Central School/Florence Rideout Elementary School 
 
Members of the Watatic Grange, Mrs. Camille Twiss and Sherry Bovosky visited the third grade at 
Florence Rideout Elementary School on December 13th.   During their visit they presented each third 
grade student with their very own personalized student dictionary and gazetteer.   As an organization, 
the Watatic Grange supports the Dictionary Project.  The goal of the dictionary project is to ensure that 
everyone will be able to enjoy the benefits of owning a dictionary. 

Star 360 will be administered to all students K-5 during the week of January 16th through the 19th. 
Students are assessed in both reading and math.  The STAR 360 assessment gives us information 
about each student's instructional level and also measures academic growth throughout the year. 
Teachers use the information from the STAR 360 test to assess student progress, make adjustments to 
their instruction, and implement strategies that best meet each student’s individual needs. The second 
reporting period will come to an end on January 19th.  Learning Profiles, as well as Star 360 reports, 
will be sent home with students on January 25th.   

The second annual Florence Rideout Elementary School Scripps Spelling Bee will take place on 
Wednesday January 23rd. The purpose of the Bee is to help students improve their spelling, increase 
their vocabulary and develop correct English usage that will help them all their lives.  4th and 5th grade 
classrooms will hold a classroom bee to determine a class champion and class runner-up. These 
students will then compete in the school wide bee to determine a school champion to compete at the 
New Hampshire State Bee later in the month of February.   

  Our next staff development day is scheduled for Friday, February 1st.  Staff at LCS and FRES 
will convene to analyze data collected from the most recent NHSAS modular Assessments.  After 
analysis of student data, teams will make adjustments to their math action plans that were 
submitted in December.   Additional training with our consultant from Demonstrated Success Ann 
Mordecai will also take place.  The focus of this training will be effective instructional strategies to 
use when teaching word problems and fractions.  

 
In response to the need for more support for students who have experienced trauma and our desire to 
become a trauma sensitive school, Joanne Dufour school counselor has explored the possibility of 
therapy dogs and their handlers to work directly with our students at Florence Rideout. Research has 
shown that therapy dogs reduce anxieties and stress associated with learning and school.  Significant 



impacts on school attendance and motivation have also been associated with students who interact 
with therapy dogs on a regular basis. There is no cost for this program.  Our initial plan to introduce a 
therapy dog program is to begin working directly with individual students who classroom teachers 
recommend to Mrs. Dufour in late January. As we build this relationship, a grade level program will 
be piloted sometime in the spring.   

Sincerely,  

Tim O’Connell 

Principal 
 



 

 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Curriculum Report:  January 8, 2018 

 

Professional Learning 

We are planning for the February 1 Workshop Day.  We will include a wellness session.  FRES will 

continue to focus on math and WLC is considering a variety of topics. 

Our Universal Design for Learning team had our monthly meeting to review instructional strategies and to 

plan for the next observation rounds on January 18 with our grant-funded consultant.  We hope that the 

teachers can observe one another’s lessons, though that is contingent upon available substitutes. 

The WLC science teachers will work on science units on January 9 as a follow up to our August training.  

Grant funds continue to support our work and the help of a science facilitator. 

I attended the regional curriculum, instruction, and assessment meetings last month.  We discussed each 

district’s approach to the state test and available resources.  We also discussed various options for math 

resources/text books for elementary math, as several districts are exploring new adoptions.  Most districts 

are also addressing social emotional learning for their students, as it is a high need. 

Curriculum 

WLC teachers continues to work on completing the progression of performance indicators for each course 

in each subject during department meetings.  During their professional learning times, they are working to 

complete the rest of their course units.  Those teachers with multiple electives have many more units to 

complete and will probably need additional time. 

FRES teachers do not have regular professional learning time.  Most of the scope and sequence documents 

have been completed for each grade and we are exploring ways for teachers to have time to work on the 

detailed units. 

Assessment 

Grades 1-8 will be taking the STAR reading and math assessments during January.  We are looking for 

improvements in grade level scores and also the state standards comparisons.  Grades 5, 8, and 11 will take 

science topic assessments aligned to the state science test.   

 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Julie Heon, Curriculum Coordinator 

 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 

District Curriculum Coordinator 

Julie S. Heon, Ed. D. 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-732-9273 

 



Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District
Fund 04 ‐ General Fund Revenue

FY 2019‐20 Analysis

17‐18 17‐18 18‐19 19‐20 increase
Description Account GL Actual GL Budget GL Budget Budget (decrease) Comments

Current Appropriation 04.1111.000 8,674,081 8,674,081 9,223,008 9,428,183 205,175 raised taxes and fund balance
Preschool Regular Tuition 04.1311.000 8,700 12,150 12,150 10,800 (1,350) Preschool program $150 ‐ 8
Extended Day Tuition 04.1312.000 32,874 40,500 0 0 0
SPED Tuition from LEAs NH 04.1322.000 0 0 0 0 0
Interest from Investments 04.1510.000 0 5,000 1,000 1,000 0 interest from three trust funds
Rentals ‐ Use of Facilities 04.1910.000 985 200 200 200 0
Contributions/Donations 04.1920.000 0 0 0 0 0
Refund of PY Expenditures 04.1980.000 15,715 28,920 21,982 24,020 2,038 ERATE
Other Local Revenue 04.1990.000 10,581 200 200 200 0 Pcard rebate, FSA unspent
Adequacy Aid 04.3110.000 1,346,178 1,346,687 1,214,038 1,231,727 17,689 per 11/15/18 letter
Statewide Enhanced Ed Tax 04.3112.000 1,219,640 1,219,640 1,195,247 1,193,826 (1,421) per MS24R
Other State Aid 04.3190.000 7,665 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
School Building Aid 04.3210.000 128,000 128,000 128,000 128,000 0
Kindergarten Keno Aid 04.3220.000 0 0 55,000 55,000 0
Catastrophic Aid 04.3230.000 141,067 142,163 135,528 137,087 1,559 69.583% of $197,012
Vocational Tuition Aid 04.3241.000 0 0 0 0 0
Vocational Transport Aid 04.3242.000 2,327 3,000 3,000 3,000 0
Medicaid Distribution 04.4580.000 62,091 80,000 65,000 65,000 0

0
Total Revenue 11,649,904 11,681,541 12,055,353 12,279,043 223,690

Food  Service 04.5221.000 227,287 219,600 215,000 230,000 15,000
Special Revenues 04.5222.000 303,384 299,923 258,652 256,442 (2,210)
Fiduciary ‐ GASB 84 04.5223.000 0 0 0 1 1
TOTALS 12,180,575 12,201,064 12,529,005 12,765,486 236,481

18‐19 Budget adjusted per DRA Tax Rate Setting ‐ MS‐24 R
Fiduciary Funds ‐ Student Activities disclosure per GASB (Govt Accounting Standards Board)

as of 1/2/2019



Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
Menu of Potential Warrant Articles for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

 
Tax Year WA # Type Language 

 

As of 1/4/2019 

2019  04  School District Operating 
Budget 

To see if the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District will vote 
to raise and appropriate the Budget Committee's recommended 
amount of $XX,XXX,XXX for the support of schools, for the payment of 
salaries for the school district officials and agents, and for the payment 
for the statutory obligations of the district.  This article does not include 
appropriations contained in special or individual articles addressed 
separately.  (Majority vote required) 
 
Recommended/Not Recommended by the School Board 
Recommended/Not Recommended by the Budget Committee 
 
Tax Impact Lyndeborough – $0.XX 
Tax Impact Wilton – $0.XX 

2019  05  Use of CRF or ETF and 
Taxation 

To see if the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District will vote 
to raise and appropriate the sum of $XX,XXX  to be added to the Wilton‐
Lyndeborough Cooperative Building/Equipment & Roadway Capital 
Reserve Fund previously established.  This sum is to come from general 
taxation.  This article is a special warrant article and is not included in 
the operating budget warrant article.  (Majority vote required) 
 
Recommended/Not Recommended by the School Board 
Recommended/Not Recommended by the Budget Committee 
 
Tax Impact Lyndeborough ‐ $0.XX    
Tax Impact Wilton ‐ $0.XX 

 

2019 06 Change Apportionment 
Basis 
AVERAGE 

Shall the Wilton‐Lyndeborough Cooperative School District vote, 
pursuant to the recommendation of the School Board, to change the 
basis for apportionment of school district costs among the two towns to 
one based on 50% average daily membership averaged over the most 
recent three years available; said change to be implemented July 1, 
2019, pursuant to NH RSA 195:8.  The implementation of this article, if 
passed, is contingent on the approval of the State Board of Education. 
(Majority vote required) 
 
Recommended/Not Recommended by the School Board 
Recommended/Not Recommended by the Budget Committee 
 

2019 07 Other - Blank To transact any other business that may legally come before this 
meeting. 

 
 

 

 



 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 3 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 4 

  6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
Present: Harry Dailey, Matt Ballou, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Mark Legere, Charlie Post, Joyce Fisk, Carol 7 
LeBlanc, Miriam Lemire and Alex LoVerme (after Budget Co. Mtg.) 8 
 9 
Superintendent Bryan Lane, Business Administrator Lise Tucker, Principal, Tim O’Connell, Curriculum 10 
Coordinator Julie Heon, Technology Director Kevin Verratti and Clerk Kristina Fowler 11 
 12 

I. CALL TO ORDER  13 
Chairman Dailey called the meeting to order at 6:30pm. 14 
 15 

II. ELEMENTARY STUDENTS OF THE MONTH 16 
Principal O’Connell honored two students of the month from FRES. 17 
 18 

III. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 19 
Superintendent requested to add policy BDE-Committees and Delegates as the Policy Committee is requesting 20 
guidance; this policy is not up for 1st reading. 21 
 22 
 A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to accept the adjustment in the agenda. 23 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 24 
 25 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 26 
There were no public comments to report.  27 
 28 

V. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 29 
a. Reports 30 

i. Superintendent’s Report 31 
Superintendent Lane provided an overview of his report.  The personnel budget (discussing this evening) shows 32 
an increase of $230,956.  Regarding impact fees, he checked with the Wilton town manager who referred him to 33 
a finance person at the town who indicated there are over $20,000 in impact fees available to the school district 34 
with no restriction specifically on how they are to be spent.  If the Board wished to access the funds in any 35 
budget season, it becomes part of the budget (through revenue).  A letter would need to be submitted to the Town 36 
of Wilton to release the funds as of July 1, 2019. It is up to the Board to decide to tap into the entire $20,000 or a 37 
portion over time. These funds go to the cooperative school district (not individual towns) toward the budget as a 38 
whole. Superintendent provided responses to previous questions which he outlined. Regarding the amount of 39 
time spent on testing at FRES he reported they have had two rounds of testing taking 1-1.5 hours per round and 40 
doesn’t believe it is “overly done”. Regarding curriculum, there will be a math program update and he agrees it 41 
would be appropriate to create a document similar to the CIP as discussed at last meeting. Regarding Keno 42 
funding, we received $13,200 more than anticipated. There is a conversation out there (state level) to move Keno 43 
funding to building aid. He doesn’t see this happening any time during this legislative session until after this 44 
budget season. The $1,100 per student he believes will be consistent.  Regarding the requested information for 45 
food service, the meal counts are provided collectively by month. It is down slightly for all three months this 46 
year and the Strategic Planning Committee are looking at this.  Regarding WLC trips, funding was increased in 47 
2017-2018 and all trips need to be supported and approved by the School Board. Regarding free and reduced, the 48 
percentage is up a little, slightly each year.  During the statewide Superintendent’s meeting, a liaison from 49 
Portsmouth Naval Shipyard presented regarding resources for military families. As part of the ESS Act (Every 50 
Student Succeed), we gather information on families in the community who are in the military. It is estimated we 51 
have 2. There can be transition issues that occur around transcripts and SPED issues for example. So far this has 52 
been a voluntary piece and it has been suggested we solicit the information as there are resources available to 53 
families in the Guard and active duty. The first week of February he is going to the legislative review session and 54 
will bring back any pertinent information. There are bills in the Senate now that are non-defined such as the 55 
“savings account for students” from SB193 in particular for SPED students, one regarding what our state song 56 



 

   

should be and a bill to reconsider whether guns should be allowed on school property.  The Governor has been 57 
invited to their session.  58 

ii. Business Administrator’s Report 59 
Ms. Tucker reported having the first Wellness Committee meeting where they discussed doing another 30-60 
minute seminar and sending emails to staff for awareness. They are putting together a community wellness page 61 
for the website. They will be initiating a six-week yoga program where participants will pay to participate and 62 
the vendor will pay for the use of the facility.  The auditors were in doing field work. There were minor findings 63 
with student activities funds and missing back up for gift cards. Regarding fiscal policies, one finding that will be 64 
in the Governess Letter refers to the fiscal policies in section D, some of these had not been looked at in the last 65 
year and they recommend this be done. The Facilities Committee met this evening. Chris Balch of the Wilton 66 
Energy Committee presented and provided a recap of the presentation he did for the board and went into detail 67 
on the retrofit vs. new fixture LED project. She noted information was presented from another vendor prior 68 
which is on our CIP.  The Facilities Committee elected Ms. Lemire as Chair and Mr. Legere as Vice Chair of this 69 
committee.  Ms. Tucker will still facilitate these meetings. The CIP was reviewed; some minor changes will be 70 
made and then will be ready to go in the annual report.   71 

iii. Principal’s Reports 72 
Superintendent reviewed Principal Bagley’s report in his absence. WLC students visited Job Corps in 73 
Manchester to learn about the offerings and options available. The Dance Team is presenting the mini-nutcracker 74 
on December 13. There has been a revival of the Drama Club and students will be doing a production in the 75 
spring and the music department is going to “A Christmas Carol”.  Information from the Athletic Department is 76 
provided in his report.  There is an NHIAA policy that says students can participate in other school’s sports and 77 
we do have students who do in this manner such as track time and swimming (not available at our school) and 78 
compete under our school name.  79 
 80 
Principal O’Connell gave an overview of his report which included grades 1-5 participating in the online “Hour 81 
of Code”, a nationwide event that introduces younger students to computer science. On December 6, members of 82 
the Universal Design Team conducting walkthroughs at WLC and FRES. The objective was to look at 83 
instruction and teachers were tasked with breaking down barriers to learning. During the early release day 84 
December 10, staff worked with the math consultant looking at data in grades K-5 and were able to analyze 85 
different sets of data to see if the things we adopted earlier had impact. Staff is looking at data to come up with 86 
action plans going forward focusing on math and areas of weakness. The 1st, 2nd and 3rd graders will perform “40 87 
Winks” on December 18. Art teacher, Mr. Lamers will work with the community center doing luminarias for the 88 
holiday stroll in Wilton. On December 14, he will have the annual holiday breakfast for staff. Staff has been 89 
giving back to the community this past month with food drives, collecting paper goods for the community 90 
Christmas store and a giving tree.  He has provided a chart (STAR 360 Early Literacy Benchmark Assessment) 91 
comparing two different groups of students at LCS (Jan. 2017 and November 2018). We have had roughly the 92 
same amount of instructional hours that we had at the end of November (Jan. 2017 250-260 hours/Nov. 2018 93 
280-290 hours) and you can see quite a bit of difference. The full day kindergarten program exceeds almost half 94 
the year that we had last year and 74% of the students are showing above proficient in November 2018 (Jan. 95 
2017 showed 31%).  96 

iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report 97 
Dr. Heon reported professional development (PD) early release day was a busy and active afternoon. We looked 98 
at the state test data from the spring, the practice test in the fall, STAR data, college board assessment data, 99 
PSAT for grades 8 and 9 and all was valuable information. Reports were run for staff to look at regarding whole 100 
grade levels and individual data. This will be followed up on at department meetings and should continue 101 
looking at it every couple of weeks; it’s an ongoing effort in both buildings.  On January 9th we have the 102 
opportunity to work with the science consultant. The goal is to take a topic we address initially and make sure 103 
it’s an ongoing effort (“not one and done”).  She provided assessment data for the end of the first quarter from 104 
STAR in grades 1-5. The 1st grade was not tested in September; they are not ready for that type of assessment but 105 
she is confident they will be ready next year based on kindergarten. Students reached their grade level targets 106 
with 1st grade just making it at 1.2 in math.  She spoke of spending a lot of time talking with STAR 360 about the 107 
data and they explained it will take a couple of years to get the new set of data and do a linkage study with our 108 
new state test. She provided a three documents of “graphic data” for grades 3, 4, 5. She reports this is one way to 109 
examine the STAR data and is used to estimate how well a student or group of students would perform on the 110 
state test. Looking at grade 3 in September and November the data shows they are exceeding the expectation and 111 
the majority should hit proficiency target in June. Grades 4 and 5 show they have made more progress to close 112 



 

   

the gap but still have some work to do to meet proficiency in the state test.  Superintendent Lane thanked Dr. 113 
Heon for working with the company and putting this together and reiterates the goal is to close the gap all 114 
together and make sure we present well when the test is taken.  Dr. Heon confirmed these targets are based on 115 
old tests; it is not an exact match with our new test.  116 
  117 
Skipped to Budget Committee session. 118 
 119 

b. Letters/Information 120 
i. Warrant 1-3 121 

Superintendent Lane reviewed articles 1-3 for the elections (in format it will be posted). A final will be brought 122 
in the future for signature.  123 

ii. Newspaper Notice 124 
Superintendent Lane reported we are required by law to post in the newspaper and buildings. A copy of the 125 
posting was provided. 126 

iii. Enrollment  127 
Superintendent Lane reported there is slight fluctuation in enrollment but it is staying reasonably consistent. A 128 
question was raised if any students from the 11th grade moved into the 12th grade. Superintendent Lane will look 129 
into this but normally it is done in January when they change their credit status.  130 

iv. Career Opportunities for Students 131 
 Superintendent Lane reported at a previous school board meeting, a community member brought up there was a 132 
lack of opportunities for students who are not moving onto college. He reports there are 10 course offerings in 133 
Milford High School and because we are part of “Region 16” there are options at Alvirne High School, ConVal 134 
High School, Mascenic Regional High School and Nashua Technology Center. These options are listed in our 135 
course of studies. He gave examples of some such as basic welding, veterinary science, automotive technology, 136 
health sciences, electrical trades, video production, and culinary arts. Currently there 2 students taking advantage 137 
at Milford and one at Mascenic. If students are interested, we would work toward finding transport.  He 138 
confirmed the guidance counselors do work with the students and the Career and Tech Center comes here and 139 
gives a presentation to the 9th and 10th grade. Students can take 2 years of a course and in some instances can take 140 
3 which is usually an internship leading to a certificate such as an LNA. It is a matter of if it will fit into their 141 
schedule and what choices they want to make.  It was noted if they have graduation requirements to meet the 142 
transportation time can be an issue.  Milford is reasonably close and not a lot of time spent on transport. He 143 
explained the differences with Job Core and that the funding is different. Some districts offer it as a class and the 144 
school district pays tuition. If there was enough interest, we would look at doing it here and obtain some funding 145 
from other resources. There is a tuition charge for us for students to go to other schools but it is about $1,500-146 
$2,000 and we budget for that. 147 
 148 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 149 
There was no consent agenda to report. 150 
 151 

VII. 7:00 PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 152 
a. FY 2019-2020 153 

Present: Leslie Browne, Kevin Boette, Lisa Post, Jennifer Bernet, Dennis Golding, Edwina Hastings, and Pam 154 
Altner 155 
 156 
The committee was already in session as they met prior. This session started at 7:06pm. 157 

i. Staffing & Benefits 158 
Superintendent provided an overview of the salary and benefits budget. The proposed budget shows an increase 159 
of $230,956 mostly in salaries and wages of $205,791.  Salary for transport/van driver was moved from 160 
transportation to salary line as appropriate. The majority of the salary increases are driven by the CBA’s 161 
(collective bargaining agreements). There are increases for 3 ABA Therapists for additional students moving in. 162 
He added we identified the RISE program saves about $30,000-$40,000 per student and the alternative to adding 163 
the ABA Therapist is increases in SPED. Employee retirement shows a decrease of $11,733 for those staff who 164 
are not certified by the Dept. of Ed and those who are certified by the Dept. of Ed (such as principals, teachers, 165 
nurses, superintendent) show an increase of $64,451 for an overall increase of about $52,000.  The SAU 166 
performance incentive line is increased by 2.5%, $1,162 (staff not in a CBA). He confirmed for Chair Browne 167 
the funds for positions that go unfilled such as the athletic trainer go back to the general fund at the end of the 168 



 

   

year. He would like to keep this position in the budget even though it has not been filled, in hopes of filling it and 169 
if not after another year it will be removed.  A brief discussion was had regarding the RISE program and has it 170 
become too successful that families may be moving into the district for this specific program. Superintendent 171 
Lane explained the increases are because the number of grades we are covering and doesn’t see we are attracting 172 
more students per grade which would be the indicator you would look for.  He further explained students are 173 
eligible to receive services at age 2 but it is difficult to diagnose them as they mature we are able to do more 174 
diagnostic work and they could have been living in the towns already although does not have data for this.  He 175 
added there are similar programs in Jaffrey Rindge, Mascenic and Milford.  If they do not have this in their 176 
district they could request to come here, pay for tuition (equal to per pupil expenditure) and the ABA Therapist. 177 
He confirmed the increases for the ABA Therapist are because of need and a change in certification for some 178 
(not part of CBA). Increases in CBA’s are a total of $116,879. Ms. Tucker confirmed the van driver salary is 179 
$8,023 (not $7,700 listed on the summary sheet). Superintendent Lane confirmed professional compensation for 180 
the consultant is for the reading program and is zero as it is no longer needed which is also the case for the 181 
substitute compensation as we had substitutes covering for PD.  A question was raised regarding a line titled 182 
SAU performance incentive; what it was. Superintendent Lane explained that is a salary pool for those who are 183 
not affiliated with a bargaining unit (CBA), those are increases for people such as ABA Therapists, 184 
administrators, clerical staff, custodians; anyone who is not in a collective bargaining agreement. He determines 185 
how these are distributed and the scenarios vary by individual. Ms. Tucker added at the end of the year, those 186 
funds are distributed to the proper salary line. 187 

ii. Line Item 188 
The line item budget was included as well as running totals which have been discussed. Proposed grand total is 189 
$12,765,486, an increase over FY19 adopted of $296,481 (2.38%).  Ms. Post commented that she did the 190 
numbers and we are up just shy of a million over 4 years.  Chairman Dailey reminded the group that FY17 was a 191 
full bond payment for FRES.  Ms. Tucker confirmed the numbers for “principal on debt” (lines 500-502) are 192 
correct and the interest on debt is listed on separate lines (486-488).  Mr. Boette requested to have a total student 193 
population including what we are expecting and what we have had. Superintendent responded that he didn’t have 194 
all the numbers but we are at about 560 and the reason for the increase is due to kindergarten.  Chairman Dailey 195 
requested for the next meeting to have a simple spread sheet with gross and approved budget, net budget and 196 
what the revenues are. A question was raised what kind of “stats” can be produced for the Ecolab caddy. 197 
Superintendent responded this is used to sanitize and power wash the bathrooms. Ms. Tucker added she does not 198 
believe the bathrooms are as clean as they could be because of how they are used and this is more efficient. 199 
 200 
Chairman Dailey confirmed the agenda tonight includes the district calendar and suggested MS reorganization be 201 
on the agenda for January 8 as this may have impact on the budget. 202 
 203 
The Budget Committee will meet December 18 to discuss and come up with questions which will be sent prior to 204 
the meeting and discussed on the January 8 joint meeting.  205 
 206 
Superintendent asked for the final budget number for the January 22 meeting.  207 
 208 
Mr. Vanderhoof confirmed the Strategic Planning Committee discussed not be coming forward this year with 209 
any administrative changes as there are a lot of changes already. 210 

iii. Warrant Articles 211 
Superintendent reviewed the draft warrant articles, #4 is the budget, #5 is for the Buildings/Equipment & 212 
Roadways Capital Reserve ($60,000).  Discussion was had regarding adding a warrant article for the rolling 213 
average to level out spikes in the tax rate. The apportionment now is a 50/50 scenario around valuation and 214 
average daily membership. Changes would level out the tax rate, not change the amount paid (doesn’t avoid 215 
taxes, avoids the spikes in tax rate).  There is a document which was provided at the November 27 meeting 216 
showing the effect of rolling tax rate averages and is still available on the website.  Concerns were raised that by 217 
changing this gives the appearance of a transparency issue and by keeping it as it is, is more transparent, if there 218 
are spikes, they should be explainable.  It was confirmed this has zero effect on the budget. Discussion was had 219 
regarding when apportionment data was available.  It was noted student data is available before valuation data; 220 
overall not available until about 6 months after the budget is approved.  Superintendent Lane will check with the 221 
DRA if the Budget Committee officially weighs in on this article as recommending or not as it is not monetary 222 
but has a monetary effect.  The Budget Committee is happy to provide an opinion.  There was discussion 223 
regarding the wording of “Recommended/Not Recommended by the School Board” “Recommended/Not 224 



 

   

Recommended by the Budget Committee” vs. “Recommended by the School Board” “Recommended by the 225 
Budget Committee”. Mr. Post requests to have the draft amended to match the first one. Chairman Dailey noted 226 
the warrant articles are put on the warrant by the School Board so essentially it wouldn’t be on there if it was not 227 
recommended by the School Board.  The language will be changed as requested. 228 
 229 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Ballou and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme to add the apportionment (rolling 230 
average) to the draft warrant articles. (for future discussion) 231 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 232 
 233 
Superintendent Lane confirmed voting on articles needs to be done by the January 22 meeting. 234 
 235 

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 236 
There was no public comment to report. 237 
 238 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Post and SECONDED by Ms. Altner to adjourn the Budget Committee session at 239 
7:53pm. 240 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 241 
 242 

IX. ACTION ITEMS 243 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 244 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. Post to approve the minutes for November 245 
27, 2018 as amended. 246 
Voting: six ayes; two abstentions from Ms. LeBlanc and Mr. Legere, motion carried. 247 
 248 

b. Warrant Articles 249 
 Previously discussed see above. 250 
 251 

c. School District Calendar 2019-2020 252 
Superintendent Lane reported the recommendation from the Strategic Planning Committee is for 178-day 253 
calendar, students starting on August 29, teachers start on 26-28 (first three days prior), new teacher orientation 254 
August 21-22 and last day of school with 5 snow days being June 18.  This allows an opportunity for additional 255 
PD time (8 days including early release and full days). Input has been received by the Board from the WLCTA 256 
and all members acknowledged understanding of their concern and point of view. Superintendent Lane clarified 257 
the history of early release days and the non-work day/parent-teacher conference day (Friday before Columbus 258 
Day).  He confirmed he attempted two years ago to have the day which has been allocated non-work or parent-259 
teacher conference day to be a PD day and the WLCTA filed a grievance which was upheld and designated as 260 
the 5th PD day.  Mr. Vanderhoof added the Strategic Planning Committee had a goal to come up with a calendar 261 
that was in line with the CBA and did not need an exception granted from the WLCTA. They felt this was the 262 
best option to provide additional PD, collaboration time and instructional time. During the initial presentation he 263 
had indicated it was expected the WLCTA would file a grievance. The teachers are paid for 180 days and this is 264 
for 178. Superintendent Lane explained the process if a grievance is filed. If it elevates to the level of the Board 265 
of Education, they would make the decision and both parties have to follow it. Discussion was had and varying 266 
opinions shared including just making the 178 days’ full school days and next year add in workshop days and 267 
wanting a balance of instructional days and PD days. It was noted this is not meant to be punitive. Early release 268 
days over the years have fluctuated and it has not been a problem during negotiation time. Research was done on 269 
longer days, fewer days, shorter days, more days in the year all with one constant being collaboration is key for 270 
any scenario to work.  The contract indicates 1 day before school is for teachers to prepare their rooms, no PD is 271 
being done, having 180 days would still be within the contract. The teacher’s response when previously asked 272 
was they think it should be part of the negotiation process and chose not to attend Strategic Planning meetings. It 273 
was noted that the contract indicates 180 school days plus 5 PD days which they are being paid for although we 274 
do not have 180 school days. A request for the cost to the district was asked for and to include transportation 275 
costs associated if any. Superintendent Lane will determine a figure based on per diem rates for teachers and a 276 
daily cost for bussing. He noted there is cost to add paraprofessionals for additional 4 days (in the proposed 277 
calendar) as currently they do not work these days and taking into account their salaries and FICA it is 278 
approximately $10,000. He confirmed there are 53 teachers. He confirmed one issue brought up by the WLCTA 279 
is the per diem rate was not bargained (it’s based on the number of school days) and adding days would change 280 



 

   

the per diem rate. In response to this, the Strategic Planning Committee discussed maintaining for the last year of 281 
the contract the same per diem rate as it was specifically bargained and felt this would partially meet the 282 
teacher’s needs. The cost associated is less than $2,000.  A concern was raised that there is only one calendar 283 
option and this is disappointing. This is a creative way to obtain more PD and tax payers agreed to add the 284 
Curriculum Coordinator who indicates we do need more time but we also have one of the longest school days in 285 
the area and this should be negotiated.  Discussions continued briefly about last year’s calendar option (rejected 286 
by the teachers and which would have provided additional PD) and again discussion regarding days worked, 287 
days paid and what the contract indicates and what was negotiated. 288 
 289 
 A MOTION was made by Mr. Post and SECONDED by Ms. LeBlanc to adopt the calendar as proposed. 290 
Voting: five ayes; three nays from Ms. Lemire, Mr. Legere and Mr. LoVerme, motion carried. 291 
 292 

X. COMMITTEE REPORTS 293 
i. Facilities Committee 294 

Ms. Tucker reported the committee reviewed the CIP, made one minor change. Chris Balch, Wilton Energy 295 
Committee presented regarding LED lighting, they discussed ongoing projects. She confirmed Mr. Balch did 296 
present to the Board at a prior meeting and a copy of the presentation is available. 297 

ii. Budget Liaison 298 
Mr. LoVerme reported the committee discussed LED lighting would provide a $40,000 savings. Ms. Tucker 299 
notes this is a rough estimate; it is based on rebates available at the time. Full fixture replacement vs. retrofit was 300 
presented. Mr. LoVerme reported the committee suggests publishing the CIP in the annual report. It was noted 301 
this is published in the annual report. The committee discussed the MS reorganization and reduction of 2 302 
teachers and discussed if that did not work to remove the Vice Principal (position). Chairman Dailey noted the 303 
MS reorganization will be discussed at the January 8 board meeting. 304 

iii. Strategic Planning Committee 305 
Mr. Vanderhoof reported the committee decided to uphold their recommendation regarding the MS 306 
reorganization (additional opportunities for 8th graders and reduce 2 MS teachers). There is ongoing conversation 307 
regarding food service and bringing in an outside consultant; they are still gathering information.  They briefly 308 
discussed alternative education/school within a school and came to the conclusion they would not be bringing 309 
anything forward. Other than food service and trying to gain a better understanding of why the program is 310 
running in the red, or any further suggestions from the Board, they completed the tasks assigned. There is not a 311 
scheduled meeting but anticipate to meet toward the end of January or February to discuss food service.  It was 312 
noted if the MS reorganization decision is to not reduce by 2 teachers the Strategic Planning Committee may 313 
look at the administrative structure next year and reiterated there is nothing else for them during this budget 314 
season. 315 

iv. Policy Committee 316 
Mr. Ballou reported officers were elected; Mr. Ballou elected as Chair and Ms. Lemire elected as Vice Chair. 317 
The next meeting is scheduled for January 15. There are a number of policies coming up and a backlog of polies 318 
to review which will take an enormous amount of time.  319 

XI. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES 320 
There were none to report.  321 
 322 

XII. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 323 
A question was raised if it is likely to have the calendar settled if a grievance is filed, prior to needing the budget 324 
completed. Superintendent confirmed yes.  325 
Superintendent Lane confirmed the budget presentations are completed. He confirmed questions should be 326 
submitted by the Budget Committee Chair, Ms. Browne to the Superintendent.  It was confirmed the next two 327 
board meetings are scheduled as joint meetings.   328 
 329 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS 330 
Ms. Sandy Reid, resident and teacher at FRES wanted to be sure as part of the discussion regarding the calendar 331 
that it should be taken into account the fact that conferences are part of the day they were assigned (non-work 332 
day/parent-teacher conference day). She scheduled 22 students from 3pm-8pm, Tuesday, Wednesday and Friday 333 
just this past year. The day was put aside for them, they don’t use that day but instead use the afternoon and night 334 
time hours in order to accommodate parents and sometimes make arrangements to come in early in the morning. 335 
Sometimes she is not home until 8:30pm. 336 



 

   

 337 
XIV. POLICIES 338 

i. JICI-Weapons on School Property-3rd Read 339 
Superintendent recommends tabling this policy as he is waiting on information regarding liability from Primex 340 
and then should be brought back to the Policy Committee. 341 
 342 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Mr. Legere to table policy JICI-Weapons on School 343 
Property. 344 
Voting: seven ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof, motion carried. 345 
 346 

ii. BCA-School Board Member Ethics-4th Read 347 
Superintendent Lane reviewed changes to this policy and notes other policy references have been added at the 348 
bottom.  349 
 350 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Post and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme to accept policy BCA-School Board 351 
Member Ethics as written. 352 
Voting: all aye, motion carried unanimously. 353 
 354 

iii. BDB-Board Officers-1st Read 355 
Superintendent Lane reviewed this is the 1st reading of this policy with changes to remove language regarding 356 
the secretary. It was noted the first sentence refers to secretary as well and secretary reference should be 357 
removed. Change will be made and brought back for a 2nd reading. 358 

iv. BIA-New Board Member Orientation-1st Read 359 
Superintendent Lane reviewed this is the 1st reading of this policy and reviewed the draft changes in red 360 
including not printing policy manual, previous years’ minutes etc. but to new members where to access the 361 
information and they will be informed of workshops as they become available. This policy will be brought back 362 
for a 2nd reading. 363 

v. GCQC-Resignations-1st Read  364 
Superintendent Lane reviewed this policy noting it does not follow current practice, the Board could amend the 365 
policy or choose to change current practice and follow the policy.  The policy indicates the Superintendent 366 
accepts the resignation of a certified staff person and informs the Board. Current practice is the Board is 367 
accepting the resignations with the acceptance noted in the minutes. He questioned if the Board wants the voting 368 
power. If the Board wishes to follow policy as is then he would accept the resignation and send a letter to the 369 
employee notifying them of acceptance of the resignation and provide a copy of the letter in the Board Packet 370 
under resignations/appointments/leaves. A brief discussion was had and the consensus was to follow policy as is 371 
(change current practice).  The policy will be marked reviewed only on December 11, 2018 otherwise no 372 
changes. 373 

 BDE-Committees and Delegates 374 
Superintendent Lane reviewed this policy is not up for a reading but for guidance. One change was made to 375 
remove the secretary reference. The Policy Committee is asking the Board to discuss which committees should 376 
be designated as standing committees. Discussion was had regarding each committee.  Negotiations Committee 377 
does not meet during non-contract times although is listed as a standing committee in the policy as well as 378 
Facilities Committee. Regarding the Strategic Planning Committee, Chairman Dailey provided some history and 379 
how it came about. The Elementary History Committee is an ad hoc committee, not standing committee and will 380 
not be listed. It was discussed having the Negotiations Committee meet during “off years” would be beneficial. 381 
Consensus was to keep Negotiations Committee, noting it will meet quarterly during “off” years doing research, 382 
add Policy Committee and Strategic Planning Committee all as standing committees. Superintendent Lane will 383 
come up language regarding the committees and send it to committee chairs and members for review. After any 384 
recommended changes it will go to the Policy Committee for review. Election of Negotiations Committee 385 
members will be added to the next agenda.  386 
 387 

XV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  388 
Mr. Ballou questioned if anyone was planning to attend the Delegate Assembly as he will be attending. No 389 
response of attendance from other members.  390 
Chairman Dailey questioned the status of the Wilton Elementary History Book. Ms. Fisk noted it will be 391 
completed and is still in process. Chairman Dailey noted if Board support is needed to let him know.  392 



 

   

It was noted regarding the WLCTA, they have 21 days to file a grievance before the next board meeting.   393 
 394 

XVI. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 395 
i. Personnel Matters 396 

A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to enter Non-Public Session to discuss 397 
personnel matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 9:05pm. 398 
Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 399 
 400 
  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 401 
The Board entered public session at 10:09pm. 402 
 403 
A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. LoVerme and 404 
SECONDED by Ms. Lemire. 405 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 406 
 407 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 408 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to adjourn the Board meeting at 409 
10:09pm. 410 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 411 
 412 
Respectfully submitted, 413 
Kristina Fowler 414 
 415 



BIA - NEW BOARD MEMBER ORIENTATION 
 
 

A new member is to be afforded the Board and the staff’s fullest measures of courtesy and 
cooperation. Board and staff shall make every feasible effort to assist the new member to become 
fully informed about the Board’s functions, policies, and procedures. 

A special workshop will be convened for the primary purpose of orienting the new member to 
his or her responsibilities, to the Board’s method of operating, and to Districts policies and 
procedures. 

Each new member will be provided with those materials: 

New Board members will be informed on where access the following by the Superintendent of 
Schools: 

1.  The previous year’s complete record of minutes. 

2.  A copy of Revised Statutes Annotated Relating to Public Schools. (RSA) 

3.  A copy of  Becoming A Better Board Member. 

4.  The School Board Policy Manual. 

5.  The NH School Boards Association Orientation Packet. 

6.  The current school budget. 

7.  Negotiated Labor Agreements. 

5.  The current school budget 

6.  Negotiated Labor Agreements 

 

New Board members will be informed of workshops as they become available. 

 
First Reading: September 14, 2010 
Second Reading: October 12, 2010 
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
 

 
 
 

DRAFT



BDB - BOARD OFFICERS 
 

The officers of the Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board shall be a Chairperson, a 
Vice-Chairperson and a Secretary. The officers shall be elected at the annual organization 
meeting to serve until the next annual organization meeting or until a successor is elected. Any 
vacancy in any of such offices may be filled at any meeting of the Board provided that all 
members of the Board have been notified prior to the meeting that the vacancy will be filled at 
such meeting. The Superintendent is the chief executive officer and an ex-officio member of the 
Board and shall be the Executive Secretary ex-officio. 

CHAIRPERSON: 

The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and shall not originate or second motions; 
however, the Chairperson shall have the right to vote on all matters before the Board. The 
chairperson shall consult with the Superintendent on the preparation of the agenda for each 
meeting, shall have authority to sign contracts and other instruments as approved by the Board in 
its name and on its behalf, and shall have such other powers and duties as the Board may from 
time to time determine. 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON: 

The Vice-Chairperson shall have the powers and duties of the Chairperson in his/her absence or 
for the duration of the disability, and such other powers and duties as the Board may from time 
to time determine. 

SECRETARY: 

The Secretary shall be responsible for Board correspondence when directed by the Chairperson. 

 
First Reading: September 14, 2010 
Second Reading: October 12, 2010 
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
 

 
 
 

DRAFT






	WLC School Board Agenda 1.8.19
	Supt report January 8 2019
	Business Office Report 011019
	WLC Principal Report Jan. 2019
	principal 1.8.19 part 1
	Principal 1_8_19 part 2-3

	Elementary Principal Report 1-8-19
	Curriculum Report_Jan. 2018
	General Fund Revenue 19-20 123118
	Warrant Articles TO BOARD 2019-20 2nd draft 1.2.19
	WLC School Board Draft Meeting Minutes 12.11.18
	BIA 2nd read-Board Member Orienctation-to board 1.8.19
	BDB-Board Officers 2nd read 1.8.19
	Resignations



